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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Basis for Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/S AIS ADHESIVES 
LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of material accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "standalone financial 
statements). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Comnpanies Act, 2013 
(the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Key Audit Matters 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAS) Specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("1CAI") together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The following key 

audit matters have been determined by us for including in our report: 
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S.No. Key Audit Matters 
Transactions with related Parties: 

" Revenue from Sale of Finished Goods. 

" Availing Marketing Services. 

" Granting of Loan out of Surplus Funds 
available with the company. 

Auditor's Response 
We have perfoned the following procedures: 

" We have read the contracts with related parties and 
unrelated parties, analysed and identified the 
performance obligations, and determine the rates 

charged for goods supplied. 

" We have tested the revenue recognised from 
related party, interest on loans and cost of services 

availed whether the rates are charged as per the 
agreed terms of the contracts and also compared 
the rates charged to unrelated parties. 

" We have also communicated to those charge with 
governance considering the significance of the 

matter and the reliability of the rates agreed, 
whether the rates charged are at Arm's Length 
basis. 

" We have also considered the adequacy of financial 
report disclosures included in the summary of 
significant accounting policies in Note 1 to the 
standalone financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon which we obtained prior to 
the date of this auditor's report, and the Director's report, which is expected to be made available to us 
after that date. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If based on the work we have performed on the other infomation that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance and describe actions 
applicable under the applicable laws and regulations. ARAMA 
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Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial perfomance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materlal 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concem and using the going concen basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(%) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intermal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on te Gmpany's ability to continue as a going NATKIMA 
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concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerm. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in () planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, 
and (1) to evaluate the effect of any identified mistatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in �Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section l43(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
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specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
J1, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 
Mrch 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act 

(") With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure B". Our report expresses an modified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
eftectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, no remuneration has 
been paid by the Company to its directors during the year. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statement. 

(1) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(11) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrOwed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by 
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (�Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatemepARM� 
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(v) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which does not have a feature 
of recording audit trail throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Due to this audit trail has not been preserved by the company as per the 
statutory requirement for record retention. 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: 13.05.2024 

For A SHARMA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN:002642N ARMA 

SignatuD ACCOUNTA 
(ANJU SHUKLA) 

Partner 

M No. 511590 
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A A. Sharma & Co. 

ANNEXURE �A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
section of our report to the Members of AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED of even date) 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditors' Report) 
Order, 2020 (�the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Act 

1 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the nomal course of audit, we state that: 

ii. 

In respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment as well as 
intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and so to cover all the assets once in a year. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) Since the company does not have any immovable property (other than properties 
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour 
of the lessee) and therefore, reporting under clause 3(i)\c) is not applicable. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

(a) Inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals 
during the year, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory between the books and the physical verification were noticed. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 75 crores, in 
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the 

basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

ii (a) During the year, the company has not made any investments. 
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(b) During the ycar the company has provided loans to entities but has not provded any 
advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any enuiy. Balance outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are given below: 

Aggregate amount 
granted/ provided Nil 
during the year 

(f 

Subsidiaries 
Joint 

Ventures 
Associates 
Others 

Balance outstanding 
as at balance sheet 

date in respect of 
above cases 

Subsidiaries 
Joint 

Ventures 

Guarantecs 

Associates 
Others 

Nil 

Nil 

All Parties 

Security 

Aggregate amount of loans/ 
advance in nature of loans 

-Repayable on demand (A) 
-Agreement does not 
specify any terms or period Nil 
of repayment (B) 
Total (A+B) 

Nil 

Rs. 910 

Nil 

Rs. 910 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Loans 

Nil 

Nil 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

(c) In respect of loans the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not 
been stipulated. 

Promoters 

sHARIL 

Rs. 850 

(d) Since there is no schedule of repayment in respect of loans granted by the company, the 
reporting on overdue amount and steps taken for their recovery are not applicable. 

OACCOU 

Rs. 910 

(e) The loans granted by the company have not fallen due during the year. Therefore, the para 
3(iii)(e) regarding renewal or extension or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of 
existing loans are not applicable 

Advances 
the nature of 

loans 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

1n 

Related Parties 

Rs. 910 

Rs. 910 



V 

. 

vi. 

Vii. 

Viil. 

ix. 

Percentage of loans/ 
advances in nature of loans 100% 
to the total loans 

Nil 

In respect of loans, provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been 
Complied with. The company has not made any investment, given guarantees ana 
sccunty during the year and therefore the compliance of Section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act are not applicable. 
The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

In respect of Statutory dues: 

100% 

Provisions for maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, were not applicable to the company. 
Hence para 3(vi) of the order was not applicable. 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 

dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable except Rs.2.98 lakhs payable towards tax deducted at 
source as reflected in TRACES Portal. 

(b) There were no disputed statutory dues pending refered to in sub-clause (a). 

There were no tran sactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) The company has not taken any loans or borrOwings during the year, hence reporting 
for any default in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender under clause 3(ix)\a) of the Order are not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding 
tern loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting regarding application of 
loan for the purpose for which obtained and any diversion of loan amount under clause 
3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raiscd on 
ARM4 
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X1i. 

xili. 

Xiv. 

XV. 

xvi. 

short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reporting under 
clause 3(ix)\e) of the Order are not applicable 

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held 
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, and hence reporting on clause 
3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable. 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
ofter (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)\(a) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally convertible) 
and hence reporting under clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable. 

(a) No traud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year, reporting regarding nature and amount involved is not applicable. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this 
report. 

(c) As represented to us by the management there were no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year. 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

All the following transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013; wherever applicable and the Related Party 
disclosure as required by IndAS 24 Related Party Disclosures are duly disclosed in the 
Financial Statements. 

The provisions relating to Internal Audit under the Act are not applicable to the company, 
hence Clause 3(xiv) not applicable to the company. 

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)a), 
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 
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XVIl. 

xviii. 

XIX. 

XX. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investnment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)\d) ofthe Order is not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year, 
reporting regarding consideration of issues, objections and concerns raised by the 
outgoing auditors are not applicable. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this not an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 

all liabilities falling due within a period of one year fronm the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(a) There was no amount unspent which was required to be transferred to a fund specified 
in Schedule 7 to the Companies Act, 2013 within a period of 6 months of the expiry of 
Financial Year in compliance with section 135(5) of the said act. 

(b) There was no amount remained unspent on any ongoing project which was required to 
be transferred to special account in compliance with section 135(6) of the said act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated:13.05.2024 

For A SHARMA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN:002642N 
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A. Sharma & Co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

ANNEXURE �B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2() under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
section of our report to the Members of AIS ADHESIVES LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (0) of sub 
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the �Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls Over financial reporting of AIS ADHESIV ES 

LIMITED (the "Company") as of March 31. 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Aud1t of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the "1CAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate intermal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

or erTOr. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finan cial statements, whether due to fraud 
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We believe that the audit evidence we lhave obtaincd. is sufficient and appropriate to prov 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intermal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporing is a process designcd to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly retiect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assuTance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to penit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors o 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materi al 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of intenal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the 
following material weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2024: 

The Company is using an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts 
which does not have feature of recording audit trail throughout the year which is not 
only non- compliance of statutory requirement under the Companies Act but also may 
result in none detection of alteration made. 

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
financial control over financial reporting, such that there isa reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected on a timely basis. 

In our opinion, except for the effects/p0ssible effects of the material weakness described 
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has 
maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

ARMA 

MEN DEA 

RED A 
CCoUNT 



control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". 

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining 
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applicd in our audit of the March 31, 2024 
standalone financial statements of the Company. and this material weakness do not affect 
our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated:13.05.2024 

Company. 

For A SHARMA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN:002642N 

(ANJU SHUKLA) 

SignaturoDAcoU 

Partner 

SHA MA & 

M No. 511590 

NEW DELHI 

UNID: 2451 1590BKJRA Q8059 
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AS PE R OUR SE PA RAT E RE PORT  OF  E V E N DAT E A NNEX E D

Mr. Subodh K umar Singh
Manager- F*A

1.20
21.61
5.38

300.92

1.22
46.35
4.96

397.32

Current liabilities
F inancial liabilities

Leased L albllltles
Trade payables
(a)T otal outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note
19)

(b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial l iabilities

Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTA L  E QUITY  A ND LIABILIT IES
Signific^nt A ccounting Policies
Explanatory Notas to A ccounts

For k on behalf of Board of Directors

112.90
17.85

96.91
19.92

irrant liabilities
Provi

Total

219.51
3008.54

3703.99

3264.35

219.51
3628.45

4438.14

4224.79
197.22

14.05
26.58

561.99
1334.24

558.24
5.90

167.02
0.00

24.43
1123.78
2004.63
415.60

5.15

21.58
212.19
115.26

0.02
90.59

14.50
13.98
99.68
0.02

85.16

4
3

2b
2b
2a

ASSE TS
Non-current assets

Property, plant & equipment
Intangible assets other than Goodwill
Right to Use

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
F inancial assets

Investment
T rade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent

Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTA L  ASSE TS

EQUITY  A ND L IA BIL IT IES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

L iabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Leased Lalbllltles

(Rs. L akhs)

As at
31st March 2023

A s at
31st March 2024

A IS A DHESIV ES LIMITED
BAL A NCE  SHEET AS AT  31st March 2024
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A S PER OUR  SEPA RATE R E PORT OF E V EN DATE  ANNE X ED
ForA SHAR MA&CO.
Ch
FR

Mr. Subodh K umar Singh
Manager -F  & A

Mr. V tkraJn Khanna
Director
DIN 03634131DIN 05233949

Mr. Gopal SanX lA

Director11/

For &  on behalf of Board of Directors

j
Significant Accounting Policies
Explanatory Notes to Accounts

Earnings per equity share (Par value Rs 10/- each)
Basic  ̂Diluted - Rs in INR

469.26

-2.81

-3.75
-0.94

619.93

-1.00

-1.34
-0.34

-3.08
0.00

176.73

651.88
0.00

651.88

2797.41
203.59

29.71
10.39

112.56
-12.36
99.10

2354.43

3449.29
129.45

3319.84

-7.42
-5.10

214.43

837.69
0.00

837.69

2931.11
162.84
25.16
17.02
73.73

-42.73
0.00

2695.09

3768.80
150.65

3618.15
Revenue
Revenue from operations20
Other income21
Total revenue

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed22
Purchase of Stock in T rade23
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and Stock-in-Trade    24
Employee benefits expense25
F inance costs26
Depreciation and amortization expense27
Other expenses28
Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit before tax
Tax expense

Current T ax
Provision for Earlier Y ears
Deferred tax A ssets/(L iability)

Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of tax)

- Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
-Deferred Tax on OCI

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

For the year ended
31st March 2023

For the year
ended

31st March 2024

(Rs. Lakhs)

AIS ADHESIV ES L IMITE D
STAT EME NT  OF PROFIT A ND LOSS FOR  THE  Y EAR  ENDED 31st MARCH 2024



424.45
-31.55

-2.91
-7.48
0.00

-21.i6
0.00
0.00

95.05

-56.27
21.87

129.45

539.82
-178.87

602.01
34.53

206.63
21.56
4.44
2.14

-191.06
3.10

-195.87
7.25

81.42
-0.35

-30.34

-5.28
-0.36

17.33
12.38
-3.75
2.91
7.48

-129.45
5.90

Y ear ended
31st March 2023

-31.63

-1.96
-15.06

0.00
-14.61

0.00

-153.41

-2.76
0.00

-150.65

1071.84
-216.41

1029.18
142.65

-561.78
198.21

2.15
7.08

81.94
0.75

30.20
14:05

101.04
-0.41

24.74

2.07
0.01

8.18
16.98
-1.34

1.96
15.06

150.65
0.00

Y ear ended
31st March 2024

A.Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
A mortisation on R ight to Use A ssets
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Finance costs
Borrowing cost Right to use
Interest Income
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in current loans
(Increase)/ decrease in other non current financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in other Current financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in deferred tax assets (net)
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories''
(Increase)/ decrease in investment
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/ decrease in current tax assets (net)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities for lease
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in non current financial liabilities for lease
Increase/ (decrease) in non-current provisions
Increase/ (decrease) in current provisions
Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes (paid)
Net cash provided/ (used) by operating activities (A)

B.Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received during the year
Net cash used by investing activities (B)

C.Cash flows from financing activities
F inance costs paid
Borrowing cost Right to use
Initial adjustment in Reserve against lease obligations
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Issue of Share Capital
Dividend & Dividend Tax paid
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A  + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(Rs. takhs)

AIS A DHESIV ES LIMITED
ST A TEMENT OF CA SH FL OWS A S A T 31st March 2024
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DATE D

AS PER OUR SEPARATE R EPORT OF  EV EN DATE  A NNEX ED
For A  SHA RMA  Si CO.
Chartered A ccountants

Mr. V ikram Khanna
Director
DIN 03634131

Mr. Copal Ga
Director
DIN 05233949

Notes:
i) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind A S 7 on "Statement of
Cash F lows"

it) Figures in brackets represent outflows.
iii) Previous Y ear figures have been restated wherever necessary.

For a on boha

1334.24

0.00

172.15

1162.09

As at
31st March 2023

10.30

41.63

1952.70
2004.63

As at
31st March 2024

Cash in hand
Balances with banks:
-in current accounts
-on deposit accounts (with original maturity of 12 months

or less)

Components of cash and cash equivalents:



0.01
5.04
6.25
3.49
1.61

-0.17
5.15

21.38

0.01
3.32
5.54
5.94
6.22
6.51
7.34

34.88

0.02
8.36

11.79
9.43
7.83
6.34

12.49
56.26

2016-17
2017-18
2018-19
2019-20
2020-21
2021-22
2022-24
Total

s under:

ir Schedule II to the Companies Act,. 2013.
laklng rt in line with the method

Depreciation on Property, Plant 8t Equipments, prior to the current financial year 2023-24 was provided on the written down value (WDV ) method over the estimated useful lives prescribed under
From FY  23-24, the Company has changed its method of accounting of depreciation in respect of its Property, Plant 8t Equipments from written down value (WDV ) to straight line method (SLM) ir
of valuation being followed by the holding company.
In line with Ind-A S, the depi-eciation has been recomputed as per the SLM from the date of the assets put to use. Due to this change in A ccounting Policy and retrospective re-computation of depreciation, the excess depreciation charged til l
the beginning of the the FY  2023-24 (as on 01.04.2023) works out to Rs. 21.40 lacs and the same has been adjusted from the opening balance of Reserve and Surplus. Y ear wise breakup of the s
Financial Y earDepreciation as per WDV Depreciation as per SLMDifference Excess charged

90,5934.8727,53

75.79
10.42

2.10
0.23

17.34
1.63

14.38
0.42
1.10

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.51
1.16
0.21
0.26

12.14
1.12

13.23
0.21
0.84

93.13
12.05
16.49
0.65
3.14

0.00
o.oo
0.00
0.00
0.00

52.9772,4

43.62
7.15
0.94
0.00

50.00
4.40

15.54
0.65
1.69

Plant &  Equipment's
Furniture &  F ixture
Office Equipment's
Computers
E lectrical F ittings
Total

As at
31 March 2022

A s at
31 March 2023

Net carrying value
(Rs. Lakhs)

Upto
31 March 2023

pair men t
Deductions/
adjustments

For
the year

^epreciation /amortisation and in
Upto

1 A pril 2022
As at

31 March 2023
Deductions/

Additions   adjustments

Gross carrying value
As at

1 A pril 2022

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023

2.05
0.23
2.10

10.42
75.79

31 March 2023
As at

1.75
2.04
2.20
9.82

69.36
arch 2024

As at

1.40
0.73

14.93
2.72

23.27
31March 2024  31M

Upto

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

adjustments
Deductions/

0.30
0.31
0.54
1.10
5.93

the Period

1.10
0.42

14.36
1.63

17.34
1 April 2023

Upto

3.14
2.77

17.13
12.55
92.63

31 Mar̂ h 2024
A s at

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

adjustments
Deductions/

0.00
2.12
0.64
0.00
0.00

Additions

3.14
0.65

16.49
12.05
93.13

1 A pril 2023
As at

Electrical F ittings
Computers
Office Equipment's
Furniture &  F ixtures
Plant &  Equipment's

Net carrying valueDepr̂ ciation/amortisation and impairmentGross carrying value
As at 31st March 2024

2a  Property, plant &  equipment



69.54

64.35
04.35

5.19

0.00
0.02
5.17

A s at
31 March 2O22

ng value

115.28

115.26
115.26

0.02

0.00
0.02
0.00

A s at
31 March 2023

Net carryi

57.05

32.50
32.50

24.55

0.06
0.18

24.31

Upto
31 March 2023

75.90

75.90
75.90

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Deductions/
adjustments

14.13

12.38
12.38

1.75

0.00
0.00
1.75

For
the year

118.81

96.02
96.02

22.80

0.06
0.18

22.56
0.00

Upto
1 April 2022

Depreciation/amortisation and impairment

172.33

147.76
147.76

24.57

Q.06
0.20

24.31
0.00 •

As at
31 March 2023

122.90

117.49
117.49

5.41

0.00
0.00
5.41

Deductions/
adjustments

106.88

104.88
104.88

2.00

0.00
0.00
2,00

Additions

Gross carrying value

188.36

160.37
160.37

27.98

G.06
0.20

27,72

As at
1 April 2022

Grand Total

Total
R ight to Use

Total

Computer Software
Drawmg
L icense and Franchisee

Particulars
A s at 31 March 2023

115.28

115.26
115,26

0.02

99.71

99.68
99.68

0.02

74.03

49.48
49.48

24.55

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

16.98

16.98
16.98

0.00

57.05

32.50
32.50

24.55

173.73

149.16
149.16

24.57

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

1.40

1.40
1.40

0.00

172.33

147.76
147.76

24.57

0.00
0.02
0.00

0.00
0.02
0.00

0.06
0.18

24.31

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.06
0.18

24.31

0.06
0.20

24.31
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.06
0.20

24.31

Grand Total

R ight to Use
Total

Deductions/UptoA s atA s at
adjustments    31March 2024   31 March 2024   31 March 2023the year

Net carrying value
Upto

1 A pril 2023
As at

31 March 2024
Deductions/
adjustments

As at
1 A pril 2023

Depreciation/amortisation and impairmentGross carrying value
A s at 31st Marsh 2024

2b Intangible assets other than Goodwill



to at 31 March 1024to at 31 March 1013

is been adiusted In the the Retained E arning as on Apr 01, 2023. T^e de
FIFO toils    Weighted Average  Different

lower by K s.37.34 lakhs •
INV ENTOR Y  :
A ion 31.03.2023.

-is are valued at net realisation value
Prior to the current financial ^ear 2023-24, Raw material Cost was determined on a F irst in First out (FIFO) method basis,

W ith effect from FY  2 -̂24, the C ompany has changed Its method of determining the cost of raw material on Moving Weighted Average bi

st bails.weight!R aw
(bl

Raw Materlahr Major Iteres

F inished toods Major Ite^s

deludes Materlal-ld-tr̂

chlO14to at 31 March 1013

lorbed depreciation/ carried forward to

i at list March 2014

tt at they relate to the te eoventlae laws.

it 31 Hatch J t4to at 31 March 2013

:s (Previous Y ear Rs 2.00 lacs) are kept as margin for Bank Guarai

Deterred tax ai

•...•••••••••
Other NaaacUl assets - Noa-cur



id Advances considered aood-Secured
id Advances considered aood-Unsecured

f ft 31 Harcb 20

11   Caiieat tax Aeacta (Matt

(tfasecaiad, coacMered |eH)

Ait31Harab 2023

Unsecured Loans Includes loans to
2.GX  G lass Sales and Servic
3.Shield A utogl^ss L imited.

10  Otber carraat flaaaclal ae

national Saving Certlllcata
Unsecured Loan*

DeDosIt wIBi NBFC  ;-

Secatlt̂  oaoaelts

* A n amount of Rs. 3.76 lakhs is In Inoperative current account

K b 2023

o.oo

As at 31bAa at 31 HiFcb 2024

tm̂ Mt
*"    n.or

H ^^  ̂tit'* *  •*
^ O.OD

•a aertodefnii
"  ̂ .̂H

i.. hi. lol lnw
66A 1

DWtftUU
34B.S6

ĵiuimijus—

Partkaian
Iwileat*

- considered aood

- vrhlrh have Manlflrin!  Increi

•  Caeb aad caah eeu

^ifpui^d ^ra R eceivables

A s At 31it Hatch. 2023

-UQiilUgu^ed X^Ue Receivables - credittmMlisd
e-rnauMK arir r̂lUndisputed T r t̂je recelvabl

A  ̂At 31st Hat. 2034

T rade racahrabtes

Less; Allowance for bad a doubtful receivables

fol lowing related parties



tlon of Raw Material..: C hanoe In value of In

Open!no balance
(h^  Retains* earelni

General re
Profit for t

it 31 H4rch 2023W ot 31 March 2024

10.49.895 1        47.83%
.HB..ftL ĥaLeslA^Me.ho.lr|!rH.

„ company.S as      eon

3Q<

Detail* of Shareholdin  ̂ol promoters

"fl
47.1( 1.49.895

Mo. ol share^
nno%

/*aoo hoMirruH"i 9f ^haros
IPMAP*

-

(el  Details ol Shareholders holding more th;

le vote per share,
ny, after dlstrlb

I  Terms an* rights attache* to equity .hares)

The C ompany has only one class ol Issued equity shares having a par value fa 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to o

rl l ! be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders.

hi

s.

il^

n RAmount

31.95,090

Mo. of Shares
As at 31.o3.2612

319.51

Ho. of Shares
As at Si  ,03.20;

At the end of th

M at 31 March 2023
E n nit* Sh^re caettol



2071.230JW0.00
Atljmlineiu during Hie year

Ind AS 1II. adiû menb1
balance as at 31 March 1013

Mo

uK *ln
Other Items

oa'"    the financial
Effective

Hedges

t*

nsl

E quity
Instrume

Comprehe"•s    ComprehensI

Debt

nature)        •""

R eserve* A  surplus
Equity

Particular.                                         npplkation
money

pending
allotment

3307.710.000M>

3SP3.170.00T ola! coinprelcn-J ve Income (a-b)

inJ  A S li6 3diuaments
balance as at 31 March 1O14

0.00

againstTotal

E xchange
OcbtCqaltydifference*

instruments  Instruments    Effectiveon
throughthroughportion of    Revaluation  translating

OtherOtherCash F low   Surplus    the financial
Comprehend Comprehenal    Hedgesstatements

opera tloa
balance as at 1 A ntll 2023

II Other eqnttv (Refer Note-12
the Y ea, ended 31 March 

For the Y ear ended 31 March 2013

..,.„. .̂, ••̂

Change* In    """
equity share

capital daring
the current  the c

bnlanceatChanges I.*the beginningE quity Share1*
of the currentCapital d-ê ^

reportingIt

(A) Eenitv shirs capital  (Refer Hote.13)
For the Y ear ended 31 March MM



vl

>n (or employee's benefit*:

19  Prevtsleee- Current

 ̂(Previous T ear Rs 14.21 lacs)

Start Payable
Others - Income Tax Payable *
Payable Towards Provident Fund. 6SIC A  LW F"

, TC5 under Income Tax
StalHtaiv Pavahls*

31 Hatch 202331 HetCh 3034

Employee's Bsnedts Expenses Pevables
s at 31 r̂ch MM â at 31 Merth 20Z3

O.OO
300.91

T^Mt^tneneyw

!^

TotelMsrethsnlyesnJ 4 îr

L ,llmln,^r

L ŝthtntvssr

rivlnivnnrert riiiH - nth.^

fli!trmnMt! îti ii?'-"i:w!^5f

As At 31st Her, 1034

to other then micro, smell end mediun

Mm at 31 Hatch 3O14 ŝ st 31 March 2033

Provision (or employs* bsntfil ei



party of Rs 45.34 lacs (Previous year Rs. 61.53 lacs)

Miscellaneous Income
Total
* Intetest Income Includes Interest received T r

e (Tan deducted at source Rs. 13.93 lacs ,  R .V . Rs. 10.77

Otfcet oeeratlen r<

Sale  ̂of F inished Goods

m IraM operation a



J ilt March 2013

iBW Rtoiv at the bmitaitlM of  Htar
Stock-ln-tride
laventorv at the clocc al IM af

less : C hanoe In value of Inventory due to cheno* in accountinn oollcy with resoett to method of v i

Sltt Mirth 2023

IS.
.10

f.

:,1

M
99

278469

2.806
2 495

23PURC HASES OF STOC K  IK  TRADE

MAJ OR IT E MS OF PURC HASES
-GIB 5MB
24Ckaaeus !• HivnlorhM 4f Hatched *oodt, Steck-In-Tiada

^AJ OR IT EMS OF RAW MA TE RIAL  PURC HASES
•a ooflcv wi t̂  nesnect to method of valuation of Ri



P

ets (net)
t

Demandi
rttten Off

Rebate a Discount
Refections

Brokerage &  Commission
Office Maintenance

Printing a Stationary
Repairs &  Maintenance- Plant a Machinery

mses"

lentaa

Legal a Professional Expe
Telephone a C omrounicat
Selling & F orwarding E xi

: ",'nnn miltgns
in.',™ ^' ..a. .̂.
Filing Fges
E lectricity Etpentes

27  De âclatlea •<• *aorttzatto
De^reci^tion on Prooe

F oreion E tch
Borrow I no 

lilt March 2023

-•I-'



i l Rental expense recognise Rs. 6.03 Lacs

n leases as mentioned below by virtue of exemption provided in IND AS

149.16

113.98
49.48
6.03
0.00
15.06
16-98

6.03
0.00
15.06

ackets indicates credit balances in the books of accounts

Provided During
year ended

31.03.2024 (net)
147.76

127.20
32.50
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

O USE
L IA BIL ITY  FOR L EASE D A SSETS
[C UR R E NT A ND NON-CURR E NT )
AC CUMULATED DE PR EC IAT ION ON RIGHT TO USE
R E NT PA ID
OTHE R  INCOME
BOR ROWING COST R EC OGNISE D
DEPRE CIA T ION ON RIGHTS T O USE

Particular*

During the year Standard resulted in recognition of fol lowing assets/l iabil ities.

2  X nd AS lie 'Leases'

defined benefit plans

209.33

7.42

For the year
ended

31st March
2O24

Currant tax a

Ad^ustment for earl ier years

Deferred tax axpanaa
Ori înation and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate

Total

ii) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

1   Diecloeure •• par Ind AS 12 Income taxes'



The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply" and demand in die employment market Further, die expected return on plan assets is determined considering several  appbcable factors mainly Ihe
composition of plan assets held, assessed risk of asset management and historical returns from plan assets.

7.50% Per Annum

5% Per Annum
8% Per Annum

7.25% Per Annum

5% Per Annum

8% Per Annum

Discount rate

Withdrawal R ate
Salary escalation rate

31 March 202331 March 2024

e the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

0.320.36

2.202.10

17.29

0.95

1.25

14.16

1.04

1.06

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost (income)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss
Included in OCI:
RemeasuremeiU loss (gain) :

Other
Benefits paid
Closing balance

Defined benefit obligations
a. Actuarial assumptions

Defined benefit obligation
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

13.43
0.72

14.15
14.15

31 March 2023

15.78
0.84

16.62
16.62

31 March 2024

Movement In net defined benefit (assetyiiabitily

Non-current
Current

Net defined benefit (assetyiiabihty :
Gratuity

3  Disclosure as per Ind A S 19 'E mployee benefits'

(a)Defined contribution plans:'  .  '   '
The Company pays fixed contribution to below funds at predetermined rates to appropriate authorities:
1. Provident fund
An amount of Rs.2,.70 lacs (Previous Y ear Rs.2.41 lacs) for die year rotting on 31 March 2024 is recognised as an expense on tins account and charged to die Statement of Profit and

Loss.

il. Employee state Insurance and labour fund
An amount of Rs. 0.11 lacs (Previous Y ear Rs.0.19 lacs) for the year ending on 31 March 2024 is recognised as an expense on this account and charged to die Statement of Profit and

Loss.

(b)Defined benefit plans:
1. Gratuity
a) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. E very employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitied to gratuity at 13 days salary (15/26 X  last
drawn basic salary plus deamess allowance) for each completed year of service. The Company has carried out actuarial valuation of gratuity benefit.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, die following table gets out the status of die gratuity plan and die amounts recognised in die Company's financial statements as at
balance sheet date:



0.24
4.42

4.66

31 March 2023

0.22
4.14

4.36

31 March 2024

v
Non-current
Current

Net defined benefit (assetyliabihty :
Leave E ncashment

IL  L eave encashment

The company has amended its plan for leave encashment which is now treated as a retirement benefit plan and has been worked out by an independent

actuary.

Based on die actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the leave encashment plan and die amounts recognised in die
Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

14.16

14.16

16.62

16.62
Total

11.11

11.11
2029-30

10.41

10.41

1.32

1.32
2028-29

0.28

0.28

0.35

0.35
2027-28

0.28

0.28

0.35

0.35
2026-27

2.10

2.10

2.65

2.65
2025-26

0.38

0.38

0.84

0.84
2024-25

0.72

0.72

0.00

2023-24

31 March 2023
Gratuity

Estimate of expected benefit payment In future years

31 March 2024
Gratuity

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, die Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

a)Changes in discouut rale
A  decrease in discount rate will increase (dan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of die plans' bond holdings.

b)L ife expectancy
The pension plan obligations arc to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans' liabilities.
This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

13.16
14.20
15.28

Decrease

15.27
14.12
13.17

Increase
31 March 2023

15.52
16.68
17.86

Decrease

17.84
16.56
15.52

Increase
31 March 2024

b. Sensitivity analysts

R easonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of die relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Discount rate (1.00% movement)
Withdrawal Rate (1.00% movement)
Salary escalation rate (1.00% movement)

Although die analysis does not take account of the hill distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity
of the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at die end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that die change in assumptions would occur in isolation of erne another as some of die assumptions may be correlated.



b) L ife expectancyThe pension plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in K fe expectancy will result in an increase in the plans' liabilities.
This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

Risk exposure
T hrough its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, fire most significant of which are detailed below:

a) Changes in discount rate
A  decrease in discount rate will increase plan liabilities, although fins will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial  valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

b. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
31 March 2024            31 March 2023

Increase    DecreaseIncreaseDecrease
Discount rale (1.00% movement)4.044.744.315.07
Withdrawal R ate (1.00% movement)4.354.384.654.68
Salary escalation rale (1.00% movement)4.734.045.064.33

Although the analysis does not take account of the full  distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity

of the assumptions shown.
The sensitivity analvsis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates die impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in ihe defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

7.50% Per .Annum

5% Per Annum

8% Per Annum

31 March 2023

7.25% Per Aimum

5% Per Annum

8% Per Annum

31 March 2024

4.66

0.00
3.32

-0.05
-0,05

0.96

0.45
0.51

4.36
1.29

0.23
0.23

0.77

0.42
0.35

Discount rate

Withdrawal Rate

Salar̂  escalation rate

Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid
C losing balance

Defined benefit obligations
a. A ctuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest cost ( income)
T otal amount recognised in profit or loss
Included in OCl:
Remeasurement loss (gain):
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Income

Defined benefit obligation
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Movement in net defined benefit (assetyiiabllity



200.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

500.00
0.00

500.00
0.00

350.00

27.79
52.24

0.00
5.85
55.68

35.86
0.00

13.29
5.87

26.18

0.00
167.39

1,725.63

14.93
173.13

2,089.71

0.00
0.00
0.00

25.38
57.60

4.59
56.89
2.10

0.00
0.00

V  \

4.Loans/Advances Given
AIS Glass Solutions limited
GX  Glass Sales &  Services L imilec
Shield Auto Glass L td.

5.L oan received back
Shield Auto Glass L td.
AIS Glass Solutions limited

6.Investment in E quity Shares
Under Par T echnologies L imited

1.E xpenses
- - Purchase orGlass and Other Products (StocltT n-Tradc)

AIS Distribution Services limited
Shield A utogiass L td.

-Purchase of Glass and Other Products (Raw Materials)
Asahi India Glass limited

AIS Glass Solutions limited
AIS 3 îstribution Services L imited

-Franchisee fee
Shield A utogiass L td.

-Rent
Asahi India Glass limited

2.Income
-Material Sold

AIS Distribution Services L imited
Shield A utogiass L td.

AIS Glass Solutions Limited
-Fitment J obs

Shield A utogiass L td.
-Interest Received
AIS Glass Solutions limited
GX  Glass Sales &  Services Limited
Shield Autogiass Ltd.

3.Shared Expenses
Shield Autogiass L td.

AIS Distribution Services Limited

2022-232023-24

E nterprises owned or
significantly influenced
by K ey Management

Personnel

(Rs. Lakhs)
0 Transactions with the related parties are as follows:

Director
Director
Additional Director (appointed w.c.f 27.02.2024)

Director (ceased to be director w.e.f 27.02.2024)

ii i)  K ey Managerial Personnel (K MP):
Mr. Gopal Ganatra
Mr. V iknun K hanna
Mr Ru|)inder Shelly
Mr Pawan K umar

4  Disclosure as ^er L id AS 24 -Related Party Disclosures'" H -*

•>   L ist of Related parties:

I) E nterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMPs or their relative:
1.Asahi India Glass limited (holding company w.e.f. 1 st Feb-2024)
2.AIS Glass Solutions limited
3.Shield A utogiass L td.

4.AIS Distribution Services Limited
5.MAP Auto L td
6.GX  Glass Sales & Services limited
7.Under Par Sports T echnologies Pvt, L imited



1.67

9.00

0.00
O.OO

0.00
60.00
500.00

0.00
321.36
133.60

1.67

9.00

0.13
2.48

500.00
60.00
350.00

0.00
182.91
93.64

Amount recoverable other than loans (As Debtors)
Shield A uto Glass L td,
AIS Distribution Services I Jmited
AIS Glass Solutions limited

A mount receivable towards loans and advances
AIS Glass Solutions L imited

GX  Glass Sates &  Services L imited
Shield A uto Glass L td

A mount payable.
Asahi India Glass limited (towards purchase)
Asalii India Glass L imited (rent payable)

L iability T owards Capital Commitment
Under Par Sports T echnologies Pvt. limited

Short term Loans and advances
Under Par Sports T eclinologies Pvt limited

1)  Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties
Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

(h) Related party relationship is as identified by die Company on the basis of available information and legal opinion obtained by the Company and accepted by the Auditors as correct.

i e)  The Company has entered into an arrangement with other group companies which are also operating fitment / replace and repair centres under the franchise of Shield A uto Glass L imited for
sharing of expenses for pooling of certain resources. Actual costs are shared on an agreed ratio. During the year expenses of Rs. Nil-(P.Y . Rs. 32.34 lacs) have been shared.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

r)   Outstanding balances with related parties are as follows:



Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

Particulars                                                        3i March 2024  31 Mapch 2023

Rs. 2.00 lacs (Previous Y ear Rs. 2.00 lacs) has been deposited against the above Bank guarantees

Commitments

26-03-2016

26-03-2016

11-06-2012

0.50

0.50

0.50

A MOUNT OF

27-03-2011

27-03-2011

06-12-2007

E X CISE .
TA X A T ION
OFFCFR

E X CISE.
TA X A TION
OFFICER  CUM
DESIG

DESIGNAT ED

PUNJ AB V AT *

NOTIFIED
AUT HORITY
OF  CST*

003GT 02083000720

003GT 02083000719

003GT 01083000487

003GTO1083000486

R E FE RE NCE

(a)Contingent liabilities

Surety Bond îlNil
Income Tax(TDS)NilNil
Income Tax(Demand Including Interest of Rs.2.03 lacs)*13.2811.93
•Contingent L iabilities related to AY  2021-22 raised u/s 143(1A) has been contested by the companies before CPC and an
application for ratification of mistake is also filed with juridlctional assessing officer,

(b)Guarantees
I)  Bank Guarantees In sales tax department2.002

Bank Guarantees of Rs. 2 L acs taken from HDFC  Bank Limited

31 March 2024  31 March 2O23

6  Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent L iabilities and Contingent Assets'
Contingent liabilities and commitments

21.95,090

31 March 2023

472.07

V alue In No's

31 March 2023

21.51
10.00

(Rs. Lakhs)

31 March 2023

21,95,090

31 March 2024

620.94

31 March 2024

28.29
10.00

31 March 2024

Opening balance of Issued equity shares
Effect of shares Issued during the year, If any
Weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of
Basic and Diluted EPS

(a)Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

(b)Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator)

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Nominal value per share

5  Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per Share1

Basic and diluted earnings per share



i
F loating-rate borrowini
Bank overdraft
R uoee term loans
Forelan currencv loans

il Uauiditv riskL iquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet Its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity rlk management Is to maintain sufficient l iquidity and to
ensure funds are available for use as per the requirements.
The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabil ities.

(ii F inanclna arranaaments
The company had access to the followlnq undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
'(R a. L a^hir

Particulars31 March 2024    31 March 2023
F ixed-rate borrowinas
Bank overdraft•
Ruoee term loans
Forelan currencv loans';-

Financial Risk Management

T he Company's activities expose It to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company,
derivative financial Instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency/commodity swaps are entered Into by the Company to hedge certain
foreign currency and commodity exposure. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The Company Is exposed to the following risks from Its use of financial Instruments:
-Credit risk
-L iquidity risk
-Market risk

)  Credit riskCredit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty may not be able to settle their obligations. To manage trade receivable, the Company periodically assesses the
financial reliability of customers, taking Into account the financial conditions, economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of such receivables.

f 11 Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

c.Rs l,akhs)
Particulars3̂ March 202431 March 2023

Non̂ current loans
Other non-current financial assets13.98                            212.19
Trade receivables415.60                          558.24
Cash and cash eaulvalents2,004.631,334.24



1.786.24
0.18

a)Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
Principal amount
Interest due thereon

b)Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED A ct along-with the amount paid to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day,

c)A mount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
d)A mount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

e)A mount  of  further  interest  remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED A ct

31 March
2023

31 March
2024Particulars

Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31st March 2024 as required by
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development A ct, 2006

(Rs. L akhs)



V  k

9  Seament Reportina
!
'  The company is a sinale seament company and therefore, there is nothinq to report under Seament Reportina.

Details of foreian exchanae transactions:

a)V alue of imports calculated on CIF  basis:
i). Raw Material: Rs. 368.75 lacs (Previous year Rs. Rs. 366.09 lacs)
ii).Capital aoods: Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil/-)

b)Earninas in foreian exchanae on FOB basis:
j). E xport of goods/servicesNil (Previous year Nil)
i i). other incomeNil (Previous year Nil)

: 1 A mounts in the financial statement are presented in Lakhs (up to two decimal) except for per share data 8t otherwise stated. Certain amounts which do
not appear due to rounding of are disclosed separately. Figures relating to the previous year has been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered
necessary to make them comparable with the current year period



H-

(a)Amount required to be spent by the Company during
the year
(b)Amount of Expenditure Incurred12 5Q10 SQ

(c)Shortfall at the end of year0Q

(d)Total of previous years shortfall00

(e)Reason for shortfall

(f)Nature of CSRE nterprisesDisaster
activities                                                   development and  Management,

adult literacy.E ducation &
V ocational
Training, Old Age
Homes, Women
Empowerment,
Healthcare

xlx The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or V irtual currency during the financial year.

12.50

31 March 202331 March 2024

IThe company does not have any immovable property and therefore infoimation on title deeds held in the name of the company is not required

HSince the company does not have any immovable property information of fair value of Investment Property Is not required

iliThe Company has not revalued Its Property/Ptant/Equlpment including Right to use Assets during the year.

ivThe company has not revalued Its Intangible Assets during the year

v L oans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act 2013), that are repayable on demand or without
specifying and terms or period of repayment loan provided to AIS Glass Solutions Ltd of Rs. 350 Lakhs (previous year Rs 500 Lakhs), GX  Glass Sales and Services
L imited Rs 60 L akhsf previous year Rs 60 Lakhs) and Shield A utoglass L imited of Rs. 500 Lakhs (previous year Rs NIL ).

vi  There is no capital work in progress as on the reporting date

vli The company has no Intangible Asset under development as on the reporting date.

vHI T he Company does not hold any benami property under the Benaml T ransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.

ixThe company has surrendered the CC  Limit with Y es Bank and there is no requirement to provide the Quarterly submission of stock statement

xT he Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any Bank/Financial Institution/other lender.

xiThe Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Art, 2013/ Section 560 of Companies Art 1956.

xliThere are no charges/ satisfaction yet to be registered with die Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

xiii The Company does not have any layers of companies as prescribed under C lause (87) of Section 2 of the Art, read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.• .-

xiv A  composite scheme of arrangement under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Art 2013 between the Company (Transferor) and
M/S AIS Glass Solutions Limited (Transfree company) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 29th February 2024 and
filed with the NCL T on 26-03-2024.

xv a) T he Company has not advanced/loaned/invested funds(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (intermediaries) with understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall
i, Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any other matter whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
ii. Provide any guarantee or security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
i. Directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified In any matter whatsoever by or on behalf of Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
II. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xvi The Company has not used the borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions for the specific purposes, fbr which it was taken at the Balance Sheet date.

xvil T he Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Art, 1961,

xvlil The provisions of section 135 relating to Corporate Social Responsibilities are applicable to the company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(Rs I al cfo)



The ratio has decreased significantly
due to better control of procurement.

The ratio has improved significantly due
to the change in the credit term of
receivable.

The company has no Debts so it is not
applicable

The company has no Debts so it is not
applicable

Reasons for variation for more than

25%

-25%

29%

1%

9%

0%

0%

-6%

V ariation%

9.74

5.77

4.99

15.69%

0.00

0.00

9.46

FY 2023

7.28

7.43

5.05

17.11%

0.00

0,00

8.93

FY  2024

T rade Payables turnover (in times)
*(Net Credit Purchases / A verage trade payabies)

T rade Receivables turnover (in times)
(Revenue from contract with customers / Average trade
receivables)

Inventory turnover (in times)
ICost of goods sold / Average inventories )

Return on Equity Ratio (%)
((Net profit after taxes-preference dividend)/Net Worth)

Debt service coverage ratio (in times)
^Net Profit after taxes+depreciation-Hnterest+ exceptional
terns + amortization!  / flnterest + current maturitiesi

Debt equity ratio (in times)
^Long term borrowing + short term borrowing) / Net worth]

Current ratio (in times)
(Current assets / Current liabilities)

Ratios

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Sr. No.

xx  Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the half year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 :
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PL ACE : NEW DE I
DATED :

Mr. V ikram Khanna
Director
DIN 03634131

AS PER  OUR  SEPARATE REPORT  OF E V EN DATE  A NNE X ED
For A  SHAR MA  ft CO.
Chartered Accountants

MrV il
COO

Mr. Subodh K umar Singh
Manager - F ft A

M
Di
D

For 8k on behalf of Board of Directors

ROI = (Gross Return - Cost of Investmnet)/Cost of Investment

The ratio has improved significantly due
to lower investment during the year46%

7%

21%

-10%

229%

22.01%

14.22%

1.10

336%

23.56%

17.16%

1.00

Return on Investment (%)
(Total profit earned/Total investment)

Return on Capital Employed (%)
(Earnings before interest and Taxes/
Capital Fmploved ftotai enuitv + total debt - CWTP1)

Net profit ratio (%)
(Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing and
discontinued operations / Revenue from operations)

Net Capital T urnover Ratio (in times)
(Revenue/CaDital Employed)

11

10

9

8
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1.3  Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet  based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
•expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating

cycle;
•held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
•cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A ll other assets are classified as non-current.

A  liability is current when:
•expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

•held primarily for the purpose of trading;

1.1Corporate information :

AIS Adhesives L imited ("AIA " or "the Company") is a public limited company domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act. The
registered office of the Company is located at A-2/10, 1st F loor, WHS DDA Marble
Market, K irti Nagar, Mansarover Garden. New Delhi -110015 . The Company is
primarily engaged in the repackaging and Marketing of adhesives all over India.

1.2Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian A ccounting Standards ("Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian A ccounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

The company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read together with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(^Previous GAA P). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are
the financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IND A S
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees ("INR").

A IS A DHESIV ES L IMITED
Note No. 1: Significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the

year ended 31st March, 2024



AIS A DHESIV ES L IMIT ED
Note No. 1: Significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the

year ended 31st March, 2024

•due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
•there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and

cash equivalents.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must

be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A  fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. A ll
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

•(a) Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

•(b) V aluation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

•(c) V aluation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted
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A IS ADHESIV ES L IMITED
Note No. 1: Significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the

year ended 31st March, 2024

financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. External valuers are involved,

wherever considered necessary.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. This note
summarizes accounting policy for fair value and the other fair value related disclosures

are given in the relevant notes.

(c)Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until the assets
are ready for use and include inward freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible
asset are added to its book value only if the recognition criteria is satisfied.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized
shall be derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. A ny gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) shall be included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on tangible assets prior to the current financial year 2023-24 was
provided on the written down value (WDV ) method over the estimated useful lives
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

With effect from FY  23-24, the Company has changed its method of accounting of
depreciation in respect of its F ixed Assets from written down value (WDV ) to straight line
method (SL M) in view of making it in line with the method of accounting of depreciation
being followed by the holding company.

For the purpose of depreciation calculation, residual value is determined as 5% of the
original cost for all the assets, as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act,

2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment shall be reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriate.

(d)Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated



(e)   Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. A n
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's
("CGU") fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life shall be reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite shall be made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed
off.

5 years
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intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and L oss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent
with the function of the intangible assets. The useful lives are as follows:



(f) Financial instruments

A  financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

A ll financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. A mortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR  amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the balance

sheet) when:

•The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
•The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ^pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL ) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit
risk exposure. The Company follows ^simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on twelve-month ECL .

L ifetime ECL  are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The twelve-month ECL  is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within twelve
months after the reporting date. ECL  is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. ECL  impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period
is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the profit or loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
A ll financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables, and

derivative financial instruments.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FV TPL, fair value gains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are
not subsequently transferred to profit o ôss. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. A ll other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings is the category most relevant to the Company. A fter initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are subseqi n̂tly measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EiR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR  amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification.of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. A  change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification
prospectively from the re-classification date, which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

(h)Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses)

or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(g)   Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as

follows:

Raw Material : cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and valued at moving weighted
average cost basis.

Packing materials, Stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Finished goods and Work-in-progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating
capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Stock-in-trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

Prior to the current financial year 2023-24, Cost was determined on a First in First

out (FIFO) basis..

With effect from FY  23-24, the Company has changed its method of determining the
cost of raw material on Moving Weighted A verage basis in view of making its valuation

in line with the method of valuation being followed by the holding company.



(j) Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 " L eases" to lease contracts existing on 1st April
2019 other than short term leases using the modified retrospective method. In
accordance with Ind AS-116, for all leases with a term of more than twelve months,
the Company recognizes a "right of use" assets at cost representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
future lease payments. The right of use assets are depreciated using the straight line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of
right to use asset, in accordance with Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" Interest expense
is accounted for on the outstanding lease liability using the incremental borrowing

rate.

The lease payments associated with short term leases of twelve months or less are
recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. A  lease is classified at the
inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

A  lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
to the company is classified as Finance Lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the
commencement of the lease at the date of transaction at fair value of the leased
property. L ease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability on IRR method. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to the qualifying
assets in which case they are capitalized in accordance with accounting policy on
borrowing cost. A  leased asset is depreciated over its useful life

Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
substantially vest with lessor, are recognized as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognized as expense in statement of profit and loss.
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(i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. A ll other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.



Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale

(I)   Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts

The company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers",
which was notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015
(as A mended) and made applicable from 01.04.2018. The revenue has been
recognized in accordance with the following five step model:

i.Identify contract with customer
ii.Identify performance obligation in contract

iii.Determine transaction price
iv.A llocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
v.Recognize revenue when the company satisfies performance obligation

A IS A DHESIV ES L IMIT ED
Note No. 1: Significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the

year ended 31st March, 2024

(k) Provisions and Contingent L iabilities

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent L iability
A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow or resources will be
required to settle the obligation. The company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of the

outflow is remote.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.



(m)  Employee benefits

Short term obligations

L iabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected
to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related services are recognized in respected of employee
service up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other L ong term employee benefit obligations

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction

in future payment or a cash refund.

The contributions to provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss on
an accrual basis.
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of products is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of services

Service income is recognized, on an accrual basis, at agreed rate on sale of branded
products by the licensee, in accordance with the terms of the agreement. During the
current financial year 2023-24, there is no service income of the company as it has
already closed its service centers during FY  2022-23.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of profit

and loss.



A ccumulated Leaves

A ccumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is
treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats
accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit

credit method at the year-end.

(n) Foreign Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The company's financial
statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the company.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognized in the functional currency, using
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in the foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured in
fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change

in fair value of the item.
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Gratuity

Retirement benefit in the form of superannuation fund is a defined Group Gratuity
contribution scheme with PNB MetL ife India Insurance Co. Ltd. The Company has
established a Superannuation Fund Trust to which contributions are made monthly.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the superannuation fund scheme as
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The liabilities with
respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the company contributes to the
Group Gratuity Scheme.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur.



(o)Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying
transaction). Management periodically evaluates-positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for
all taxable temporary differences, except:

•when the deferred tax liability or asset arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

•in respect  of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiary and associate, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
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The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward exchange contract is
amortized and recognized as an expense/income over the life of the contract. A ny
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is
also recognized as income or expense for the period.



(r)Exceptional items

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately
disclosed to enable a full understanding of the company's financial performance.

(q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Sales/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. Otherwise, expenses and assets
are recognized net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid. The net amount
of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(p) Cash dividend to equity holders

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders. A  corresponding amount is recognized directly in

equity.
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rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying
transaction).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.



(s) Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions management has made which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
explained in relevant notes in the financial statements.
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